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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Pursuant to the

2 direction of the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now

3 call Docket 14-0117.  This is the complaint of Rodney

4 Rogers versus Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company.  May I

5 have your names and addresses for the record, please,

6 starting with the complainant?

7      MR. ROGERS:  Rodney Rogers, my address is 3924 West

8 Gladys, Chicago, Illinois 60624.

9      MR. BAILEY:  And Koby Bailey on behalf of Peoples

10 Gas Light and Coke Company, 130 East Randolph, Chicago,

11 Illinois 60601.  Telephone number is (312) 240-4081.

12      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Thank you.  As

13 this is the first time this complaint has come up, I

14 usually give the -- It's just a status hearing.  And I

15 explain the process a little bit and I usually give the

16 parties an opportunity to have a discussion, maybe

17 narrow the issues or settle something regarding the

18 case.  And I would leave the room and give you the room

19 in order to have this discussion.  However, before -- if

20 parties are interested in doing that.

21           Before I do that, I'd like to explain a little

22 bit that it would -- we would give the parties time

23 before we hold an evidentiary hearing.  The parties

24 would have an opportunity to exchange any documents they

25 might have.  Conduct discovery is what that's called.
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1 And after that is complete, then we would hold the

2 evidentiary hearing.  And at that evidentiary hearing,

3 the parties would present any -- present their

4 testimony, any evidence you have in support of your

5 case.

6           And after the evidentiary hearing, I would

7 issue what's called a proposed order which is not the

8 Commission's final determination.  My proposed order

9 goes to the commissioners.  And there's five

10 commissioners.  And they issue the final decision in

11 complaints here at the Commission.  I just like to let

12 people know that process because it is a couple of

13 months at the soonest that this would be completed.  I

14 don't want people to come into this with a false sense

15 of speed.

16           So are parties -- Have you had an opportunity

17 at all to meet with each other or talk before today?

18      MR. ROGERS:  No.

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Are you

20 interested in having a discussion?  I see the company

21 has brought someone with.

22      MR. BAILEY:  Your Honor, we would be open to a

23 discussion.  However, given the issues involved --

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Excuse me?

25      MR. BAILEY:  While we would be open to a
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1 discussion, I think it's unlikely to reach any

2 resolution given the nature of the complaint and our

3 issues.

4      MR. ROGERS:  I'm open to a discussion.

5      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  You know,

6 I'll let you guys have the room and see if you can talk

7 anything through.  And I did have a few questions

8 because the -- there's -- I guess your complaint is --

9 it doesn't have like dates and if there's money

10 involved.  And so I had some questions I guess about

11 that.  But I think I'll let you guys talk first.  And

12 then I'll come back and we'll talk further to see how we

13 should go forward with this case.  So I'll give you

14 maybe ten minutes.  I'll check in and see if anything is

15 happening.

16                    (A short break was had.)

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  The parties have

18 had some discussions off the record.  And like I

19 indicated, I had some questions because the complaint

20 makes some allegations, but I'm not really sure what

21 exactly it is you're requesting here from the

22 Commission.  So this complaint has to do with 3924 West

23 Gladys.  And is that your home?

24      MR. ROGERS:  Yes.  It's my apartment building.

25      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And do you own
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1 the whole building?

2      MR. ROGERS:  Yes, I do.

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And do you live

4 there?

5      MR. ROGERS:  I live in the basement apartment.

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  And does

7 your complaint have to do with your basement account?

8      MR. ROGERS:  No.  The basement account is fine.

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  And so

10 what does your complaint --

11      MR. ROGERS:  My complaint is that they opened a

12 4,452 account in my name that I did not know about.

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And so $4,052

14 [sic]?

15      MR. ROGERS:  Yes, $4,452.  They opened that account

16 in my name that I did not know about.  I received a

17 letter from a collection agency, my validation letter,

18 my opportunity to dispute this account.  They -- I

19 received the letter.  And they actually put this on my

20 credit report before I was given the opportunity to even

21 dispute this matter.

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  And so

23 what's the -- So this 4,052 has to do with --

24      MR. ROGERS:  The first floor apartment.

25      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  The first floor
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1 apartment?

2      MR. ROGERS:  Yes.

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Do you

4 have that account number?

5      MR. ROGERS:  That account number is -- That one

6 would be 5 -- No, no.  Sorry.  That would be 50006736,

7 and I don't know the last four digits.

8      MR. BAILEY:  I have it, if you need it.

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, it's the

10 first floor account as long as that's clear.  Okay.  And

11 so you're asking to not have that $4,052 in your name?

12      MR. ROGERS:  It should not be in my name.  And it

13 should not be on my credit report before I'm given the

14 opportunity to dispute it.

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So there's

16 your basement account and the first floor account.  And

17 is that the only accounts at issue?

18      MR. ROGERS:  No.  Then I have a 32-dollar account

19 once again that they opened in my name without me

20 knowing and they put it on my credit report without the

21 opportunity to even dispute.

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  And then

23 you said something about --

24      MR. ROGERS:  Then there's a third derogatory

25 account that's showing on my TransUnion credit report
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1 from Peoples Gas again as some sort of collection

2 charge-off account that I never opened.  And this one --

3 They don't even know why that one is even there.

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So these

5 accounts -- When you say accounts, they -- you might not

6 necessarily be talking about Peoples Gas account

7 numbers?

8      MR. BAILEY:  Yes.  There would be a difference

9 between a Peoples Gas account number.  The 4,452 is

10 related to an account number.  The 32 is related to an

11 account number.  The $240 we're not sure what that is.

12      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And that's that

13 last one --

14      MR. BAILEY:  Yes.

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  -- the 240?

16      MR. BAILEY:  We'd ask for additional information to

17 see if we can deal with this and see what it's about.

18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So then in

19 your complaint -- I'm just reading what you filed at the

20 Commission.  And what is the tampering, stealing thing?

21      MR. BAILEY:  So what we'll be doing is when

22 directed, we'll file an answer --

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  You've really got

24 to speak up.

25      MR. BAILEY:  I'm sorry.  We will -- When an answer
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1 is called for, we will be filing an affirmative defense

2 that tampering has occurred associated with that $4,452.

3 In the complaint that Mr. Rogers has filed, tampering

4 isn't specifically cited.  But that is why the account

5 number associated with the $4,452 was created.

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Do you

7 want to explain that?

8      MR. BAILEY:  So do you want the sort of fact

9 scenario?

10      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, something

11 why he's got an account opened in his name.

12      MR. BAILEY:  So Mr. Rogers owns the Gladys

13 property.  We are going through an AMRP upgrade in the

14 street outside.  We had to shut down the gas for the

15 street.  When we came back in to reconnect the

16 appliances and reconnect the light and do the necessary

17 safety check, we discovered tampering had occurred in

18 the basement.  And tampering occurred associated with

19 the first floor meter set and the appliances connected

20 thereto.  From there we had determined that the account

21 had been off since, let's see, approximately

22 February 19th of 2008.  And this was the -- We had done

23 the -- We were back in the home in mid-2013 when we were

24 doing the AMRP project, discovered that the tampering

25 had occurred.  Examining the basement usage, it was far
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1 lower than what would be required to use those

2 appliances.

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Hold on.

4 And so the 4,052 was gas that had registered on the

5 first floor meter?

6      MR. BAILEY:  It had not been registered on the

7 first floor meter because that meter was off.  That

8 service had been cut.

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So how was

10 the 4,000- --

11      MR. BAILEY:  How it was determined?  First we had

12 previous usage associated with the first floor apartment

13 based on the appliances associated with that, so the

14 heating unit and the water heater.

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So it was

16 estimated?

17      MR. BAILEY:  It's an estimate, yeah.

18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And is that an

19 occupied floor, the first floor?

20      MR. ROGERS:  It is occupied now.  It was occupied

21 in July of 2013.

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So you're

23 worried about your credit report and then these various

24 240-dollar charge, the 32-dollar charge and the

25 4,052-dollar charge?
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1      MR. ROGERS:  That is correct, yes.

2      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And I understand

3 that you weren't allowed -- or you weren't able to reach

4 an agreement?

5      MR. BAILEY:  On the 4,452 we were not.  We are

6 going to correct the 32.  And we are going to

7 investigate the 240 as to the credit report.

8      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Okay.

9      MR. ROGERS:  The reason why I was charged the 4,252

10 [sic] is because they told me that I have been living on

11 the first floor the entire time, that basically my

12 basement apartment -- my basement account is pretty much

13 a dummy account.  That was the reason why I was being

14 charged for the first floor.  Which when Peoples Gas

15 technicians came there themselves, no one ever said

16 that -- that actually went into my basement apartment

17 said that I didn't live there.  Because if you walk

18 through there, you can clearly see that I live in the

19 basement.

20      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So clearly

21 there's a factual issue here.

22      MR. ROGERS:  And -- I'm sorry.

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  No, no.  Go

24 ahead.

25      MR. ROGERS:  And then once they moved my meters to
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1 the outside, they made me -- well, me responsible for

2 running new gas lines to the new lines that they ran

3 outside.  So basically I had to pay a plumber $1500 to

4 come drill holes through my walls and run gas lines to

5 the new placement of the gas meters that they placed.

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So how many

7 meters are on the building?

8      MR. ROGERS:  There's three meters on the building.

9      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So basement,

10 first and second?

11      MR. ROGERS:  That's correct.

12      MR. BAILEY:  And, your Honor, that's pursuant to --

13 The system in that street is being upgraded from low

14 pressure to medium pressure.  With a low pressure

15 system, the meters are in the basement.  With a medium

16 pressure system, the meters are going to be on the side

17 of the house.  And pursuant to the complainant's

18 citation of 500.340, utility is responsible for the

19 meter -- the service line from main to gas inlet at the

20 meter.  Utility has no responsibility for post-meter or

21 the meter outlet.

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So because you're

23 upgrading the line in the street, you had to move the

24 meters on his building and he had to pay to re-pipe his

25 house?
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1      MR. BAILEY:  To make the reconnection, yes.

2      MR. ROGERS:  That seems -- I'm sorry.

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And pursuant --

4 So you're citing --

5      MR. BAILEY:  The complainant cites 500.340.

6      MR. ROGERS:  Can I say something?

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Absolutely.

8      MR. ROGERS:  So if they come and take your meters

9 out your basement, put them outside and then tell you

10 you're responsible to re-pipe these meters --

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  You know, I don't

12 know the answer to this question.  It's new to me.

13      MR. BAILEY:  One other factor, there was

14 tampering -- Well, the factual question is that there is

15 tampering occurring in the basement.  One of the reasons

16 for moving that meter outside too because it's a medium

17 pressure system and the tampering occurred is to get

18 access to our facilities and hopefully prevent future

19 tampering.

20      MR. ROGERS:  And -- I'm sorry.

21      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Go ahead.

22      MR. ROGERS:  According to the law, you can't put

23 things on my credit report before I'm given the

24 opportunity to dispute them.  If this was an account

25 that I had opened with Peoples Gas, then quite naturally
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1 they could put late payments on my credit report.  But

2 if you open an account and just put it in my name and

3 then just start, you know, racking up 30-day late

4 payments on me --

5      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Since he had an

6 existing account, why was it not added to his existing

7 account?

8      MR. ROGERS:  That's what I don't understand.

9      MR. HENDRICKSON:  That's not the company policy.

10 Because he did have an active account with us that was

11 for the basement which he was paying, when we found the

12 tampering, the tampering occurred on the first floor

13 account.  So we had --

14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Can you state

15 your name for the record?

16      MR. HENDRICKSON:  I'm sorry.  Bill Hendrickson,

17 Peoples Gas.

18      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.

19      MR. HENDRICKSON:  So we had to create an account

20 for the tampering of the gas usage.

21      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And where did you

22 mail the bills?

23      MR. HENDRICKSON:  To the Gladys address.

24      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  In whose name?

25      MR. HENDRICKSON:  Mr. Rogers.
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  To the first

2 floor?

3      MR. HENDRICKSON:  Correct.

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Did you get that?

5      MR. HENDRICKSON:  Correct.

6      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So it sounds like

7 we definitely will be going to evidentiary hearing.  And

8 I think that there are some issues here that the company

9 could definitely address in an answer to the complaint,

10 you know, bearing in mind the discussion we've had here

11 today.  So when could you file an answer?

12      MR. BAILEY:  Is the complainant going to redraft

13 the complaint?

14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  You know --

15      MR. BAILEY:  Or are we going to go from that?

16      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  I think that, you

17 know, it's been stated on the record here what the

18 complaint is.  And it is a pro se complaint here.  And I

19 don't think that's necessary.

20      MR. BAILEY:  The issues to be addressed in the

21 complaint include the issue associated with 500,

22 Part 340 and moving the meter to the outside -- from the

23 basement to the outside; and it would include the issue

24 of the $4,452 and the issue associated with credit

25 reporting?
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1      MR. ROGERS:  And my issue of $1500 for paying the

2 plumber to re-pipe my building once you moved my meters.

3      MR. BAILEY:  That would be connected to the

4 500.340 issue.

5      MR. ROGERS:  I apologize.

6      MR. BAILEY:  No problem.

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Yes.  And what he

8 states in his claim accusing of tampering and re-piping.

9 When could you file an answer?

10      MR. BAILEY:  Would 21 days be sufficient?

11      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Yes.  April 17th.

12      MR. BAILEY:  April 17th for an answer?

13      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And I'm

14 particularly curious about the charging to move the

15 meter outside.

16      MR. BAILEY:  It's not charged -- There is no charge

17 for the actual movement of the meter.  But the customer

18 paid -- had to pay to re-pipe.

19      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Had to pay to --

20      MR. BAILEY:  Yeah.  Complainant had to pay to

21 re-pipe.

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So an

23 answer about April 17th.  What about discovery?  Have

24 you provided the company records you have regarding this

25 to the complainant?
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1      MR. BAILEY:  We provided the billing.  We provided

2 the usage in question.

3      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  You provided

4 what?

5      MR. BAILEY:  The usage in question associated with

6 the billing.

7      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  How you

8 calculated that?

9      MR. BAILEY:  Yes.

10      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  And you said that

11 you suspect tampering.  Have you provided him with that?

12      MR. BAILEY:  We have not provided him the

13 photographic records or the RPU report.

14      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Is that something

15 you would like to see?

16      MR. ROGERS:  Yes, I would like to see that.

17      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  I don't -- Go

18 ahead.

19      MR. ROGERS:  I mean, I really want -- I really want

20 to know an answer why they are putting stuff on my

21 credit report without giving me an opportunity to

22 dispute it.

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So with the

24 credit reporting, will that continue while this is

25 pending?  Is there some way the company can ...
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1      MR. ROGERS:  I would like to have a letter --

2      MR. HENDRICKSON:  I can check into that.

3      MR. ROGERS:  -- stating that -- Because I want to

4 buy another building.  But right now my credit is shot.

5 I would like to have a letter that way I can present,

6 you know, a letter that these three negative accounts

7 should not be on my credit report.

8      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, I don't

9 know that I can order that without having this

10 completed.  However, is there a possibility to have --

11 not removed but suspended, something while this is

12 pending?

13      MR. HENDRICKSON:  That I'd have to look into.  I

14 can't give you an answer yes or no.

15      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  So I don't

16 know what else you might want to get from the company.

17 And if you think of something else, in the discovery

18 process you can ask Mr. Bailey --

19           Who I hope you have given him your contact

20 information.

21      MR. BAILEY:  I will give him my contact

22 information.

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So it's

24 discovery.  And if you think of something else that you

25 think they might have, you can ask them for anything
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1 that they might ...

2      MR. BAILEY:  Your Honor, I have a few discovery

3 requests also.

4      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Sure.  And the

5 same thing goes to you.  He can ask you for what you

6 have.  So if the answer is filed April 17th, I think

7 that will give a better understanding of what the issues

8 are going to be that are going to be addressed at the

9 hearing.  And it sounds like you, Mr. Rogers, are

10 anxious to have this completed.  So as far as I can

11 tell, the next thing would be to hold an evidentiary

12 hearing.

13           Is there -- Does the company have a time frame

14 in mind?

15           Do you, Mr. Rogers, have a time frame?

16      MR. ROGERS:  As soon as possible.  Just give me a

17 date and I'll be here.

18      MR. BAILEY:  Two weeks after the answer, second

19 week of May?

20      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So the week of

21 May 5th are you saying?

22      MR. BAILEY:  Yes, the week of the 5th.

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  The week of May

24 5th?  Is the week of May 5th okay with you?

25      MR. ROGERS:  That's fine with me.
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1      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Is there any day

2 that week that's better for anybody?  I think Tuesday,

3 Wednesday or Thursday are good for me that week.

4      MR. BAILEY:  Tuesday or Wednesday would be fine.

5      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Tuesday

6 May 6th.  And we will start at 10:00 o'clock.  And so

7 that's -- That day you are going to need to bring any

8 evidence you have regarding your complaint and you will

9 be going first.  And I'll swear you in.  You'll tell

10 your case and everything and describe any evidence you

11 have in support of it.  And Mr. Bailey will have the

12 opportunity to cross-examine you.  And then if you have

13 witnesses, you can bring them.  Anything you've got that

14 supports your case, that's the day to bring it.  And

15 Mr. Bailey will have a witness or more.  And then you'll

16 have the opportunity to cross-examine those witnesses.

17 And after that evidentiary hearing is complete, then I

18 issue a proposed order after that.  And we'll talk at

19 the evidentiary hearing what happens after that.

20      MR. BAILEY:  Your Honor, can I get some discovery

21 requests on the record?

22      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Sure.  Go ahead.

23      MR. BAILEY:  First of all, can I get any papers

24 related to ownership of the property?

25      MR. ROGERS:  When I purchased the building?
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1      MR. BAILEY:  Yes.

2      MR. ROGERS:  I got the original.

3      MR. BAILEY:  The title original --

4      MR. ROGERS:  Okay.

5      MR. BAILEY:  Any evidence as to tenants in the

6 building from the time frame of since you've owned the

7 building.  So the interrogatory is, did you reside at

8 the building from the time you acquired title or at

9 least from 2008 on?

10      MR. ROGERS:  So that means bring in all the bills

11 or something?

12      MR. BAILEY:  No, no.  Would you stipulate that

13 you -- that you resided at the building from 2008 to the

14 present?

15      MR. ROGERS:  Well, I didn't buy the building until

16 2010.  So that's when I bought the building.

17 September 2010 is when I bought the building.

18      MR. BAILEY:  Okay.  So if you can provide us a copy

19 of the ownership payments, any evidence as to tenants

20 during this time frame, that would be great.  Thank you.

21 And we already have the information as to the questions

22 as to the reporting.

23      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  What about the --

24 Does the company have the technicians that visited the

25 house?
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1      MR. BAILEY:  Yes.

2      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Are there reports

3 related to that?

4      MR. BAILEY:  We have the RPU, revenue protection

5 unit report, along with the photographs.

6      MR. ROGERS:  Can I ask a question?  Do you have the

7 reports of the three technicians that came there the

8 four days before you all accused me of the unauthorized

9 usage?  Because three technicians came to my house

10 before that.  And no one said anything about

11 unauthorized usage.

12      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  So how about the

13 company provide the reports relating to this building.

14      MR. BAILEY:  We'll see if we have those.  I know we

15 have the RPU reports.

16      MR. ROGERS:  I had three technicians come while I

17 was there.  And no one said anything about unauthorized

18 usage.  When I wasn't there, then someone said, It's

19 unauthorized and you haven't been living here.

20      ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE HAYNES:  Is there anything

21 else, any questions?  Okay.  Then I will look for your

22 answer to the complaint on April 17th.  And we'll hold

23 an evidentiary hearing on May 6th starting at 10:00 a.m.

24                    (Which were all the proceedings had

25                     in the above-entitled cause.)
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1  STATE OF ILLINOIS    )

                      )  SS.

2  COUNTY OF COOK       )

3

4           Liana Rivera, being first duly sworn, on oath

5 says that she is a Certified Shorthand Reporter doing

6 business in the City of Chicago, County of Cook and the

7 State of Illinois;

8           That she reported in shorthand the proceedings

9 had at the foregoing status hearing;

10           And that the foregoing is a true and correct

11 transcript of her shorthand notes so taken as aforesaid

12 and contains all the proceedings had at the said status

13 hearing.

14

15

16                      ________________________________

                     LIANA RIVERA, CSR

17

18 CSR No. 084-004417

19

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO

20 before me this 4th day of

April, A.D., 2014.

21

22

23 _______________________________

        NOTARY PUBLIC

24

25


